
 

1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 

September 24, 2020 
5:00 P.M. 

Meeting Will Be Conducted Via Zoom Conference 

AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
The public may observe and/or participate in this meeting many ways. 
 
OBSERVE: 
• To observe, the public may view the televised video conference by viewing KTOP 
channel 10 on Xfinity (Comcast) or ATT Channel 99 and locating City of Oakland 
KTOP – Channel 10 
 
• To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on this link: You are 
invited to a Zoom webinar. 
When: September 24, 2020 5:00PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Topic: HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION FULL BOARD SPECIAL 
MEETING September 24, 2020 5:00 PM 
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://zoom.us/j/95264542542 
 
To listen to the meeting by phone, please call the numbers below at the noticed 
meeting time: 
 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +16699006833,,95264542542#  or +12532158782,,95264542542#  
 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 301 715 
8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 929 205 6099  
Webinar ID: 952 6454 2542 
    International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/abdbH7YIns 
 
COMMENT: 
 
There are two ways to submit public comments. 
 
• To comment by Zoom video conference, click the “Raise Your Hand” button to 
request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on an eligible agenda item 
at the beginning of the meeting. You will be permitted to speak during your turn, 

000001



 

2  

allowed to comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted. Instructions on how to 
“Raise Your Hand” is available at: 
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129 - Raise-Hand-In-Webinar. 
 
• To comment by phone, please call on one of the above listed phone numbers. 
You will be prompted to “Raise Your Hand” by pressing “*9” to speak when Public 
Comment is taken. You will be permitted to speak during your turn, allowed to 
comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted. 
Please unmute yourself by pressing *6. 
 
If you have any questions, please email Bkong-brown@oaklandca.gov. 
 

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. ROLL CALL 
3. CONSENT ITEMS 

a) Approval of Board minutes from September 10, 2020 
4. OPEN FORUM 
5. APPEALS* 

a) T19-0359, Kelly v. Claridge Hotel, LLC 
b) T19-0202, Pacheco v. Newsome 
c) L19-0037, Pan Pacific Corp, LLC v. Tenants 

6. ACTION ITEMS 
7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a. Legislative Updates (Office of the City Attorney) 
b. Discussion regarding Board Member 

Designation/Nomenclature (R. Auguste) 
 

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND SCHEDULING   
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

As a reminder, alternates in attendance (other than those replacing an absent 
board member) will not be able to take any action, such as with regard to the 
consent calendar. 
 
Accessibility.  To request disability-related accommodations or to request an 
ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter, please email 
sshannon@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238- 3715 or California relay service at 
711 by 5:00 P.M. one day before the meeting.  

000002



 

3  

*Staff appeal summaries will be available at the Rent Program website and the Clerk’s  office at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.080.C and 2.20.090 
 
 
 Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir 
un intérprete de en español, Cantones, Mandarín o de lenguaje de señas (ASL) 
por favor envié un correo electrónico a sshannon@oaklandca.gov o llame al 
(510) 238-3715 o 711 por lo menos cinco días hábiles antes de la reunión.  

 
需要殘障輔助設施, 手語, 西班牙語, 
粵語或國語翻譯服務, 請在會議前五個工作天電郵 sshannon@oaklandca.gov 
或致電 (510) 238-3715 或 711 California relay service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

000003



 

1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 

September 10, 2020 
5:00 P.M. 

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE 
OAKLAND, CA 

MINUTES  
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The Board meeting was administered via Zoom by H. Grewal, Housing and 
Community Development Department. He explained the procedure for 
conducting the meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order at 5:00 
p.m. by Board Chair, R. Stone. 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 
T. HALL Tenant X   
R. AUGUSTE Tenant X   
H. FLANERY Tenant Alt.   X 
Vacant Tenant Alt.    

     
R. STONE Homeowner X            
A. GRAHAM Homeowner X   
S. DEVUONO-
POWELL 

Homeowner X   

E. LAI Homeowner Alt.   X 
J. MA POWERS Homeowner Alt.   X 

     
K. FRIEDMAN Landlord X   
T. WILLIAMS Landlord X            
B. SCOTT Landlord Alt.            X 
K. SIMS Landlord Alt.            X 

 
Staff Present 

 

Kent Qian   Deputy City Attorney 
Oliver Luby   Deputy City Attorney 
Chanee Franklin Minor Program Manager, Rent Adjustment Program  
Barbara Kong-Brown  Senior Hearing Officer, Rent Adjustment  

     Program 
 
 
 

000004



 

2  

3. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

a) Approval of Board Minutes from July 30, 2020, 
Full Board Special Meeting 
 
 K. Friedman corrected Bate stamp #6, 
changed “tht” to “that.” 
 
 B. Kong-Brown noted legislative updates was 
Item 5b, not Item 6. Item 6 was a training. 
 
 A. Graham moved to approve the Rent Board 
minutes from July 30, 2020, with the corrections 
provided. R. Auguste seconded. 
 

The Board voted as follows:  
   

Aye:  T. Hall, R. Auguste, R. Stone, A. Graham, S. Devuono-
Powell, K. Friedman, T. Williams 
Nay: None 
Abstain: None 

    
The motion was approved by consensus. 
 

4. OPEN FORUM 

Lucky Thomas 
• In It Together-Concern by small property owners over the 

amendments to Chapter 8.22 of The Oakland Municipal Code 
(Residential Rent Adjustments And Evictions); housing 
policies need to be balanced, to protect both landlords and 
tenants, and clear guidelines are needed. 

James Vann 
• Oakland Tenants’ Union-Congratulated R. Stone as the new 

Board Chair, expressed concern about prior hearing decisions 
where R. Stone was acting chair, and hopes he is fair and 
adheres to the regulations. 

Phyllis Horneman 
• In It Together-Requests clear definitions of “primary residence” 

and “additional occupant.” 
Catherine Deguere 

• In It Together-Requests clear definition of terms such as 

000005



 

3  

“unreasonably refuse,” “additional occupant”, and “one-for-one 
replacement.” 

Hilary Davis 
• Owner occupied duplex-The terms “Housing services”, 

“roommate,” and “subtenant v. co-tenant,” are ambiguous and 
there are too many interchangeable terms. Need clarity of 
terms and definitions.  

Lupe Schoenberger 
• Small property owner-The recent policy changes treat small 

landlords as collateral damage and there is a need to preserve 
the small landlord as they contribute to the fabric of Oakland. 

Jeanie Llewellyn 
• In It Together-Owner occupied 4-unit building. The term 

“roommate” is undefined and ambiguous, the terms need to be 
well defined, and regulations should request proof of 
residency. 

 
Board Chair R. Stone moved item 7d, Retirement of Jessie Warner, 
Rent Board Member, for discussion under Open Forum 

 
Board Chair R. Stone thanked J. Warner for her service and 
expressed appreciation for her nine years on the Board, including her 
four-year service as Board Chair. A plaque commemorating her 
service will be mailed to her.  Board members K. Friedman, T. 
Williams, and program manager C. Franklin Minor also thanked Ms. 
Warner for her service. 
 
Ms. Warner spoke about her experience as a Board member and 
stated that it was an honor to serve on the Board. 
 

  Board Member R. Auguste moved item 7e, Welcome to New Board   
           Member Saneta Devuono-Powell, for discussion under Open Forum. 

 
The Board welcomed S. Devuono-Powell to the Board and C. 
Franklin Minor spoke about S. Devuono-Powell’s background, that 
she was very knowledgeable in housing policy issues and is a long- 
term resident of Oakland. S. Devuono-Powell spoke about her 
experience in community development and policy, and is a graduate      
Berkeley Law School.  
 

000006



 

4  

5. APPEALS 

a) T18-0414 and T18-0472, Martin et al. v. Zalabak 
  Appearances: Lisa Giampaoli Tenant Representative 
     Alice Grice Conner  Owner Representative 

  The tenant appellant representative argued that the tenants moved 
into the subject building in 2014, which was rented as a multi-unit building 
for four years, and subject to rent control. The landlord wanted the tenants 
to buy the property and they could not do so. The landlord then sent them 
a 70% rent increase notice.  
 
  The Hearing Officer granted an exemption from the Rent Ordinance, 
which is not supported by substantial evidence. The Hearing Officer relied 
on the landlord’s unreliable testimony, that she removed the illegal rear unit 
from residential use. The tenants were forced out and the landlord has 
subsequently posted ads for the property for rent as a 1 “plus” bedroom, 
including the illegal unit as a “plus” 1.  
 
  There is also a procedural error by the Hearing Officer, who did not 
admit several documents submitted by the tenants, failed to note that the 
landlord did not have a permit for an office in the back unit, and the 
landlord committed fraud by saying she removed the illegal unit from 
residential use. 
 
  The owner appellee representative argued that the landlord served 
two notices, but the first notice was in error, and was rescinded. The 
Hearing Officer held two hearings to investigate the former occupants’ 
claims. There were lots of questions about the circumstances of their 
occupancy and the tenants in the rear unit moved out. A permit was pulled 
for electricity in the rear unit. The “plus” can be used as an office and the 
tenants are not permitted to introduce new evidence on appeal. 

 
  Board cases have held that deference should be paid to the Hearing 
Officer’s findings, and the Hearing Officer in this case weighed the credibility 
of the witnesses and determined the weight of the evidence.  The Rent 
Board cannot condone illegal conduct. The landlord found that the unit was 
illegal and removed it from the rental market. 

 
After arguments and rebuttal made by both parties, Board questions 

to the parties and Board discussion, Board Chair R. Stone moved to remand 
to the Hearing Officer, with direction to re-issue the Hearing Decision, 
considering DaVinci Group v. San Francisco Residential Rent Stabilization 

000007



 

5  

and Arbitration Board, 5 Cal. App.4th 24, (1992) and Owens v. City of 
Oakland Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board, Court of Appeal, 
1st Appellate District, Case No. A1576673, with specific consideration of the 
testimony of the property as a multi-unit dwelling. R. Auguste seconded.  

 
The Board voted as follows:  

 
 
Aye:  T. Hall, R. Auguste, A. Graham, R. Stone, S. Devuono-Powell, 
T. Williams, K. Friedman 
Nay:  None 
Abstain: None 
 

The motion was approved by consensus. 
 

b) T18-0018, Sund v. Vernon Street Apartments, LP aka Flynn 
Family Holdings, LLC 

  This case was postponed at the request of the tenant representative 
and will be re-scheduled. 

 
c) T19-0272 and T19-0325, Jeffers v. BD Opportunity 

Appearances: H.J. Long  Owner Representative 
    Carlene Jeffers Tenant  
  The owner appellant representative argued that the restitution 
granted in the Hearing Decision is greater than the cash flow, the owner 
provided the RAP notice in prior cases, and the restitution period for March 
2019 is 115% of the rent, which greater than 100% of the rent. This is 
unjust. The Hearing Decision is not supported by substantial evidence and 
does not provide a fair return on investment for the owner.  
 
  The Hearing Decision is also inconsistent with a prior hearing 
decision issued by Ms. Kong-Brown, regarding the same parties in T16-
0526. The tenant claimed illegal rent, removal of the laundry, rodents, and 
a parking issue. The decision granted $20.00 for decreased housing 
service regarding the laundry only and denied all other decreased housing 
service claims. This decision is part of the Record and the Hearing Officer 
should be directed to consider the prior hearing decision. 
 
  In the current case, the Hearing Officer reduced the tenant’s rent all 
the way back to October 2016, even though the tenant did not submit any 
evidence about her claims regarding water leaks, the kitchen cabinets, and  

000008



 

6  

the owner replaced the windows, and the violations were abated. The 
tenant said the water leaks were fixed. The Hearing Officer also gave a 
25% rent reduction for the kitchen cabinets because the tenant said she 
did not like the color, which is a cosmetic issue. In 2016 there was no pest 
infestation, so giving a rent reduction back to October 2016 constitutes a 
taking from the owner, resulting in unjust enrichment to the tenant. 
  
  The tenant appellee representative argued that no new evidence is 
permitted in an appeal hearing. At the underlying hearing, the owner was 
permitted to testify, and he did not contest the tenant’s statements. He did 
not know the tenant’s rent or anything about the condition of the unit, and 
he did not argue that the prior hearing decision needed to be reviewed and 
considered. Even if the conditions were abated, the owner did not submit 
any evidence to support his claim. 
 

  After arguments and rebuttal made by both parties, Board questions 
to the parties and Board discussion, R. Auguste moved to remand the case 
to the Hearing Officer to re-calculate the restitution for March 2019, not to 
exceed 100%, and limit the restitution to the date of the Hearing Decision. 
Board Chair R. Stone offered a friendly amendment that the Hearing Officer 
also consider the prior decisions of the Board for similar reductions so that 
the decision is consistent with prior reductions.  R. Auguste accepted the 
friendly amendment. T. Hall seconded the motion. 

 
The Board voted as follows:  

 
 
Aye: T. Hall, R. Auguste, A. Graham, T. Williams, R. Stone 
Nay: K. Friedman, T. Williams 
Abstain: S. Devuono-Powell 
 

The motion carried. 
 

6. ACTION ITEMS 
a) Ad Hoc Committee 

No Report 
  

b) Proposed Amendments to the Just Cause and Rent 
Regulations pursuant to Ordinance No. 13608 
Deputy City Attorney Luby stated this was not an action item 
and would be discussed in Agenda Item 7c 

000009



 

7  

 
7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
a) Discussion of Rent Program activities (Chanee 

Franklin Minor) 
 

 Tabled 
 

b) Legislative Updates 

Deputy City Attorney Qian reported that the Efficiency 
Ordinance will go to City Council next Tuesday. The purpose 
of the Ordinance is to streamline the appeal process, and 
allow the panels to hear most appeals, a staff member to 
hear appeals where there are “no shows,” and to change the 
attendance requirements. 

At the State level, the Judicial Council voted to end the ban 
on evictions on August 31, 2020. The Legislative passed AB 
3088, signed on August 31, 2020, to create eviction 
protections for tenants due to CO-VID 19. This stops 
evictions until February 2021. The State law provides that 
tenants cannot be evicted but have to pay 25% of all the rent 
due on February 1, 2021 and must resume paying the 
monthly rent beginning in February 2021. 

In Oakland, if the tenants are covered by the Rent Ordinance, 
they can use the Oakland Moratorium until the end of the 
Local Emergency due to CO-VID 19. If tenants cannot pay 
rent due to CO-VID 19 this cannot be a basis for eviction. 
Starting March 1, 2021, the owner can file in small claims 
court for rent due from tenants. 

C. Franklin Minor stated the City of Oakland has been 
awarded $5 million for homeowner and tenant assistance, 
and the RAP has a mediation program for repayment of rent 
issues, at no cost to the parties. 

c) TPO Regulations Update  

Deputy City Attorney Luby stated that within 90 days of the 
adoption of the Ordinance, which is October 21, 2020, the 
City Administrator will work with the Rent Board to develop 
regulations to conform to the changes, including defining 
“principal residence,” “base occupancy level,” and “rent 
ceiling” for a tenant not on the lease, and also to develop 

000010



 

8  

regulations for “just cause” and to define “unreasonable 
refusal” regarding additional tenants. 

C. Franklin Minor stated that she is working on a draft of the 
regulations with deputy city attorneys to present to the Board 
next month. 

The Board discussed forming an ad hoc committee versus a 
standing committee to work on the regulations. Board Chair 
R. Stone moved to create an ad hoc committee. S. Devuono-
Powell seconded, and there was Board consensus to form an 
ad hoc committee consisting of three members, who are 
Board members R. Auguste, A. Graham and K. Friedman., 
and they can decide who will chair the committee. T. Hall 
stated she could be a backup if R. Auguste is not available. 
There was discussion about the use of the term “neutral” to 
refer to the homeowner representative. 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The HRRRB meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m. by Board Chair R. Stone. 

 

000011



8.22.040 - Composition and functions of the Board.  

A.  Composition.  

1.  Members. The Board shall consist of seven (7) regular members appointed pursuant to Section 
601 of the City Charter. The Board shall be comprised of two (2) residential rental property 
owners, two (2) tenants, and three (3) persons who are neither tenants nor residential rental 
property owners. The Board shall also have six (6) alternate members, two (2) residential rental 
property owners, two (2) tenants and two (2) persons who are neither a tenants nor residential 
rental property owners appointed pursuant to Section 601 of the Charter. An alternate member 
may act at Board meetings in the absence of a regular Board member of the same category, 
and at appeal panels meetings without such an absence.  

2.  Appointment. A Board member is deemed appointed after confirmation by the City Council and 
upon taking the oath of office.  

3.  Board members serve without compensation.  

B.  Vacancies and Removal.  

1.  A vacancy on the Board exists whenever a Board member dies, resigns, or is removed, or 
whenever an appointee fails to be confirmed by the City Council within two City Council 
meetings of nomination by the Mayor.  

2.  Removal for Cause. A Board member may be removed pursuant to Section 601 of the City 
Charter. Among other things, conviction of a felony, misconduct, incompetency, inattention to or 
inability to perform duties, or absence from three consecutive regular meetings except on 
account of illness or when absent from the city by permission of the Board, constitute cause for 
removal.  

3.  Report of Attendance. To assure participation of Board members, attendance by the members 
of the Board at all regularly scheduled and special meetings of the Board shall be recorded, and 
such record shall be provided annually to the Office of the Mayor and to the City Council.  

C.  Terms and Holdover.  

1.  Terms. Board members' terms shall be for a period of three (3) years beginning on February 12 
of each year and ending on February 11 three (3) years later. Board members shall be 
appointed to staggered terms so that only one-third (⅓) of the Board will have terms expiring 
each year, with no more than one Board member who is neither a residential rental property 
owner nor a tenant, and no more than one rental property owner and no more than one tenant 
expiring each year. Terms will commence upon the date of appointment, except that an 
appointment to fill a vacancy shall be for the unexpired portion of the term only. No person may 
serve more than two (2) consecutive terms as a board member, nor more than two (2) 
consecutive terms as an alternate. Time served as a board member shall be considered 
separately from time served as an alternate.  

2.  Holdover. A Board member whose term has expired may remain as a Board member for up to 
one year following the expiration of his or her term or until a replacement is appointed 
whichever is earlier. The City Clerk shall notify the Mayor, the Rent Program, the Board, and 
affected Board member when a Board member's holdover status expires. Prior to notification by 
the City Clerk of the end of holdover status, a Board member may fully participate in all 
decisions in which such Board member participates while on holdover status and such 
decisions are not invalid because of the Board member's holdover status.  

D.  Duties and Functions.  

1.  Appeals. The Board or an Appeal Panel hears appeals from decisions of hearing officers under 
the procedures set out in O.M.C. Section 8.22.120.  

2.  Regulations. The Board may develop or amend the regulations, subject to City Council 
approval.  

000012



3.  Reports. The Board shall make such reports to the City Council or committees of the City 
Council as may be required by this Chapter, by the City Council or City Council Committee.  

4.  Recommendations. The Board may make recommendations to the City Council or appropriate 
City Council committee pertaining to this Chapter or City housing policy when requested to do 
so by the City Council or when the Board otherwise acts to do so.  

5.  Regular Meetings. The Board or an Appeal Panel shall meet regularly on the second and fourth 
Thursdays of each month unless cancelled. Rent Program staff is authorized to schedule these 
regular meetings either for the full Board or for an Appeal Panel.  

6.  Special Meetings. The Board or an Appeal Panel may meet at additional times as scheduled by 
the Board Chair or Rent Program staff.  

E.  Appeal Panels.  

1.  Appeal Panels shall hear appeals of Hearing Officer decisions.  

2.  Rent Program staff shall determine whether an appeal should be heard by an Appeal Panel or 
the full Board. A party to an appeal may, however, elect not to have his/her case heard by a 
panel and instead to be heard by the full Board. A party may so elect by notifying the Rent 
Adjustment Program not more than ten (10) days after the notice of the panel hearing is mailed.  

3.  All Appeal Panel members must be present for a quorum. A majority of the Appeal Panel is 
required to decide an appeal.  

4.  Membership on an Appeal Panel is determined by Rent Program staff. Membership need not be 
permanent, but may be selected for each panel meeting. Appeal Panels may be comprised 
solely of Alternate Board Members.  

(Ord. No. 13418, § 1(Exh. A), 2-7-2017; Ord. No. 13373, § 1, 6-7-2016; Ord. 12706 § 1, 2005; 
Ord. 12538 § 1 (part), 2003; Ord. 12399 (part), 2002)  

000013



000014



000015



000016



000017



000018



000019



000020



000021



000022



000023



000024



000025



000026



000027



000028



000029



000030



000031



000032



000033



000034



000035



000036



000037



000038



000039



000040



000041



000042



000043



000044



000045



000046



000047



000048



000049



000050



000051



000052



000053



000054



000055



000056



000057



000058



000059



000060



000061



000062



000063



000064



000065



000066



CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT 

Case No.: L19-0037 

Case Name: PanPacific Prop, LLC v. Tenants 

Property Address: 5717 Hermann Street, Oakland, CA 94609 

Parties: Nicholas Morgan (Owner) 

Jeff Rosenbloom (Owner Representative) 

Patrick Burns (Tenant) 

Tim Bussemer (Tenant) 

Cynthia Hollins (Tenant) 

Tim Cahill (Tenant) 

Marjorie Smith (Tenant) 

OWNER APPEAL: 

Activity Date 

Owner Petition filed December 3, 2018 

Tenant Response filed- Bussemer August 19, 2019 

Tenant Response filed- Hollins November 22, 2019 

Hearing Decision mailed January 6, 2020 

Owner Appeal filed January 24, 2020 

000067



000068



000069



000070



000071



000072



000073



000074



000075



000076



000077



000078



000079



000080



000081



000082



000083



000084



000085



000086



000087



000088



000089



000090



000091



000092



000093



000094



000095



000096



000097



000098



000099



000100



000101



000102



000103



000104


	Board Agenda Special Meeting  9-24-20
	Board minutes-9-10-20
	Regulations
	HRRRB 9-24-20 Packet without Agenda
	HRRRB 03.19.20.pdf

	PanPacific
	Chron. Case Report- PanPacific v. Tenants
	Owner Petition
	Tenent Response-Bussemer
	Tenant Response- Hollins
	Hearing Decision
	Owner Appeal Filed




